
OPEN LETTER 

5 May, 2014 

Mr Vincent Chua 
Director 
Discovery Bay Services Management Ltd 
Discovery Bay 
Hong Kong 
 

Dear Vincent, 

Re: Discovery Bay: The Case of LPG Supply 

Thank you for your email of 30 April, 2014, in response to my Open Letter dated 30 March, 
2014. As the director of the Manager, you act on behalf of the over 8,000 Owners in 
Discovery Bay. This is a position of public trust, which carries great responsibility. Let us turn 
our focus back to the facts. 

CLP Sub-Station 

I am pleased that you bring up the matter of the CLP sub-station adjacent to the LPG 
storage facility, as this shows how a utility supply contract may be properly concluded. I 
attach the lease agreement between HKR and CLP for your reference. I trust that you will 
study it and learn from it. 

Please note the date of the agreement – 18 August, 1982. The Discovery Bay DMC is dated 
30 September, 1982. Thus, at the time of the agreement, there was no DMC and HKR 
owned and managed the entire Lot. Your Company had not yet been given any powers or 
duties. 

The lease agreement sets out clearly the responsibilities of the Lessor and the Lessee with 
respect to the Leased Area (ie, the sub-station). The Lessor also grants the Lessee a 
wayleave allowing the Lessor to install all related electricity supply cables, which would be 
owned and maintained by the Lessor, on the Land. The agreement was deposited in the 
Land Registry on 26 August, 1982, more than one month before the DMC was executed. It 
formed part of the Incumbrances on the Lot at the time of the execution of the DMC, and all 
subsequent Owners recognised that Incumbrance upon completion of a Sale & Purchase 
Agreement with HKR. 

You will also note that “Power sub-stations” form part of the City Common Facilities under 
the DMC. Hence, all Owners recognised that they took on the obligations of the Lessor 
under the lease to maintain the building that houses the sub-station. They also recognised 
that, under the terms of the lease agreement with HKR, CLP maintains its own equipment 
and network. 

LPG Facilities 

Turning to the LPG Facilities, we find no similar record in the Land Registry. Thus, any 
agreement that may have existed between HKR and the LPG supplier upon the execution of 
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the DMC did not form part of the Incumbrances on the Lot. The Owners did not agree to be 
bound by any such agreement, if it existed, upon completion. 

There is no specific mention of LPG Facilities under the City Common Facilities, although 
they may be considered to be part of: “Any other facilities and devices installed or provided 
in the City for the use and benefit of the City and not for the use and benefit of a particular 
Village or Building.” As I noted in my initial letter on this subject, your Company has explicitly 
recognised the LPG storage facility as a City Common Facility in the COC Paper titled 
“Major Expenditure for Fiscal Year 2014-15”, dated 10 March, 2014. Your most recent email 
reaffirms this stand, but attempts to distinguish between common and private parts of the 
storage facility. However, as I have shown, the example that you cited to support this 
position is not applicable. 

The Duties of the Manager under the DMC 

Since the DMC came into force on 30 September, 1982, the Manager and the Manager 
alone has the duty: “To represent the Owners in all matters and dealings with Government or 
any utility or other competent authority or any other person whomsoever in any way touching 
or concerning the due management of the City.” 

The Manager and the Manager alone has the duty to enter into agreements for the supply of 
LPG to Discovery Bay City and to make any agreement regarding the use of the City 
Common Facilities as shall be in the best interest of the Owners of Discovery Bay City. HKR 
did not retain any such rights for itself, other than the right to run a helicopter service. It also 
has the obligation to provide or cause to be provided a ferry service. 

Statement by HKR in the Amalfi Sales Brochure 

It was revealed in the Sales Brochure for the Amalfi development of Discovery Bay, dated 9 
December, 2013, that HKR had entered into an agreement with ExxonMobil Hong Kong 
Limited for the supply of LPG to Discovery Bay City on 1 May, 2007, almost 25 years after 
the execution of the DMC. Moreover, this agreement gives ExxonMobil and San Hing (LPG) 
Company Ltd exclusive rights with respect to the supply of LPG to Discovery Bay City. It is 
prima facie that HKR has taken unto itself authorities and duties that rightly belong to the 
Manager. 

Please note that, if HKR was not authorised to enter into the 2007 agreement with 
ExxonMobil and San Hing, the terms of the agreement – including any provisions that 
require ExxonMobil and San Hing to manage and maintain all LPG Facilities including all 
pipelines – may be unenforceable. This would put the Owners of Discovery Bay at great risk 
of incurring huge expense in the future. 

There remains the issue of responsibility for maintenance of the LPG Facilities over the long 
term. By 2020, the LPG Facilities will be some 40 years old and getting older year-by-year. 
CLP is committed to maintain the electricity supply network until termination of the Land 
Grant, minus three days. ExxonMobil and San Hing have no such long-term commitment – 
at least, none that the Owners are privy to. Will they continue to maintain the LPG Facilities 
as maintenance costs rise? Your refusal to acknowledge any responsibility over LPG supply 
is deeply troubling, given the importance of stability of LPG supply and the long-term security 
of the LPG supply network. It also stands in sharp contrast to your position regarding the 
panic alarm system. 
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Questions that Remain Outstanding 

In your email response to me, you did not deign to respond to the questions that I posed in 
my previous Open Letter. I repeat the questions here, and ask you to reflect seriously on 
your duties: 

I would be grateful if you would advise: 

1) Whether your Company granted HKR the right to enter into an exclusive agreement 
with ExxonMobil Hong Kong Limited in 2007 preventing any other company from supplying 
LPG to Discovery Bay City. If so, please advise why this grant of right was not made known 
to the Owners’ Committees at that time. 

2) Whether your Company is a party to any agreement with ExxonMobil Hong Kong 
Limited or San Hing (LPG) Co. Ltd. for the supply of LPG to Discovery Bay City. If so, 
whether you will release the agreement to the City Owners’ Committee and Village Owners’ 
Committees. If not, whether you will take action to enforce your Company’s powers and 
duties under the DMC. 

3) Whether any consideration has been paid to the Management Funds at any time for 
the right to use the City and Village Common Facilities for the supply of LPG to Discovery 
Bay City. 

4) Whether to your knowledge any consideration has been paid to HKR or any related 
party at any time for the right to use the City and Village Common Facilities for the supply of 
LPG to Discovery Bay City, or for the exclusive right to supply LPG to Discovery Bay City. 

5) Whether to your knowledge San Hing (LPG) Co. Ltd., the agent for ExxonMobil Hong 
Kong Limited for Discovery Bay, or any of its directors are related parties to HKR or any of 
its directors. 

6) Whether to your knowledge any other service or other agreements exist between 
HKR and any other supplier of equipment and/or services to Discovery Bay City that would 
influence the conduct of your Company. Possible examples could include maintenance 
contracts awarded by your Company in respect of equipment installed by HKR, including lifts, 
equipment monitoring systems, panic alarm systems, etc. This is particularly relevant given 
that approval of the AMS/BMS system upgrade is on the Agenda of the City Owners’ 
Committee meeting of 7 May, 2014. 

I reserve the right to circulate this open letter or any part thereof to any organisation or 
persons as I see fit. 

Conclusion 

News of the agreement between HKR and Exxon-Mobil / San Hing only came into the public 
domain with the release of the Amalfi Sales Brochure in December 2013. You as the 
Director of the Manager have the authority and the duty to regularise this unfortunate 
situation. 

Thank you for your kind attention. 
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